2 OXFORDSHIRE
Yy COUNTY COUNCIL

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Adults

Tuesday, 16 September 2025 at 9.00 am
Room 3 - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND

If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link.
However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting.

ltems for Decision

The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached. Decisions taken
will become effective at the end of the working day on Friday, 19 September unless
called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee.

Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council.

Theseproceedingsareopento the public
“ \} * e —

Martin Reeves
Chief Executive
September 2025

Committee Officer: Email:
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Note: Date of next meeting: 21 October 2025

If you have any specialrequirements (such as a large printversion of
thesepapersorspecialaccessfacilities)please contactthe officer
named onthe frontpage, but please giveas much notice as possible
beforethe meeting.



https://oxon.cc/DDCMA16092025

Page 2

Items for Decision

1. Declarations of Interest

See guidance below.
2. Questions from County Councillors

Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet
Member's delegated powers.

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting)
and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a
written response.

Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member and shall not be the subject of further
debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before
the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting,
together with any written response which is available at that time.

3. Petitions and Public Address

Members of the public who wish to speak on an item on the agenda at this meeting, or
present a petition, can attend the meeting in person or ‘virtually’ through an online
connection.

Requests to present a petition must be submitted no later than 9am ten working days
before the meeting.

Requests to speak must be submitted no later than 9am three working days before the
meeting.

Requests should be submitted to committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk

If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to
ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A
written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9am on the day of the
meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1- 2)
The Cabinet Member is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 June

2025 as an accurate record of proceedings and to receive any information arising from
them.


mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Page 3

The Cabinet Member is also Member is asked to approve the minutes of the meeting
held on 17 December 2024 as an accurate record of proceedings and to receive any
information arising from them.

5. Carer SupportService (Pages 3- 14)

Cabinet Member: Adults

Forward Plan Ref: 2025/149

Contact: Lorraine Donnachie, Joint Senior Commissioning Officer Age
Lorraine.donnachie@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Report by Director of Adult Social Services

The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:

a) Approve the proposal for Adult Social Care to commission an unpaid carer
support service through a procurement exercise and transition to a new ten-
year contract from 1 April 2026 (pooled budget £1,071,631 for contract per year
plus £625,250 for carer payments per year as set out in paragraph 23 of the
report); and

b) Delegate to the Director for Adult Social Care authority to manage the service
design and approve the award of contract in consultation with the Head of
Legal and Governance Services and the Executive Director of Resources and
Section 151 Officer.



Page 2

Councillors declaring interests

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item
on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to
you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the
Council's area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be
recorded in each councillor's Register of Interests which is publicly available on the
Council’s website.

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member
her or himself but also those member’'s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with
as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a
meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature
as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after
having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the
item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code
of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and
that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be
questioned’.

Members Code — Other registrable interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or
wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an interest.
You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from
the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness;
anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or
negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing.
Other registrable interests include:

a) Any unpaid directorships



Page 3

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or
management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority.

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable
purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
member or in a position of general control or management.

Members Code — Non-registrable interests

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or
wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial
interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing,
a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or
wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the
interest.

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your
interest the following test should be applied:
Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:
a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b) areasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it
would affect your view of the wider public interest.

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at
the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter
and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.



This page is intentionally left blank



1/25

2/25

3/25

4/25

5/25

Agenda Item 4/25

DELEGATEDDECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBERFORADULTS

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 17 June 2025 commencing at 9.00 am
and finishing at 9.05 am.

Present:
Voting Members: Clir Tim Bearder — in the Chair
Officers: Jack Nicholson, Democratic Services

Lorraine Donnachie, Joint Senior Commissioning Office

The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations
contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting and agreed as set out below.
Copies of the agenda and reports are attached to the signed Minutes.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda No. 1/25)

There were no declarations of interest.

QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS
(Agenda No. 2/25)

There were no questions from county councillors.

PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS
(Agenda No. 3/25)

There were none.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda No. 4/25)

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2025 were approved as an accurate
record of proceedings.

DEMENTIA SUPPORT SERVICE
(Agenda No. 5/25)

The Cabinet Member approved the recommendations.
RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the proposal for Adult Social Care to commission a dementia
support service through a procurement exercise and transition to a new
ten-year contract on a five-year plus five-year basis from 1 January 2026
(pooled budget £913,623 per year as set out in paragraph 7 of the report);
and

Page 1



b) Delegate to the Director for Adult Social Care authority to manage the
service design and approve the award of contract in consultation with
the Head of Legal and Governance and the Director of Finance.

in the Chair

Page 2



Agenda Item 5/25

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Memberfor Adults
16 September 2025

Carer Support Service

Reportby Director of Adult Social Care
RECOMMENDATION

1. The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to:

a) Approve the proposal for Adult Social Care to commission an unpaid
carer support service through a procurement exercise and transition
to a new ten-year contract from 1 April 2026 (pooled budget £1,071,631
for contract per year plus £625,250 for carer payments per year as set
out in paragraph 23 of the report); and

b) Delegate to the Director for Adult Social Care authority to manage the
service design and approve the award of contract in consultation with
the Head of Legal and Governance Services and the Executive Director
of Resources and Section 151 Officer.

Executive Summary

2. This paper provides details on the proposal to commission an unpaid carer
support service with contributory funding from Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board (BOB ICB) to meet future needs. It
emphasises the importance of providing tailored support to unpaid carers,
highlighting the increasing demand for such services. It also sets the stage for
a new service model that aims to enhance the quality of life and to empower
and support unpaid carers.

3. The conclusion advocates for a strategic approach to service delivery that is
responsive to the increasing needs of the community, ensuring that unpaid
carers can live well and support the people they care for while receiving the
necessary support. The proposed changes and funding adjustments aim to
enhance the capacity, capability and effectiveness and reach of the carer
support service in Oxfordshire.

4, It is recommended that the new carer support service is commissioned by the
Council with contributory funding from BOB ICB at the increased funding level.
It is proposed the new service will go out to tender and will be commissioned
for ten years (with 6 months’ break clause included), with a proposed start
date of 1 April 2026.

Page 3



Decision table

Board Date Decision
Commercial Board 14 August 2025 Agreed
Adult Social Care Directorate Leadership 18 August 2025 Agreed
Team

ICB Turnaround Board 8 September 2025 Agreed
Joint Commissioning Executive 11 September 2025

Key decision at Cabinet 16 September 2025

Proposed commissioning

Introduction

5.

An unpaid carer is a child, young person or adult who cares for a family member
or friend who could not cope without that support, due to ill-health, frailty,
disability, a mental health condition or addiction. Many who provide unpaid care
to a family member or friend do not identify themselves as an ‘unpaid carer’ but
rather as a spouse/partner, son/daughter or friend. Sometimes the person being
cared for does not wish to recognise that they are being cared for, which is
difficult and frustrating for the carer who in turn may not be recognised as an
unpaid carer. The term ‘unpaid carer’ is not about labelling people but describing
what they do to help them access help and support.

The 2021 Census data shows:
e 52,700 or 8% of residents of Oxfordshire provide some level of unpaid care
e 22,800 provide 20 or more hours of unpaid care per week

Of those 52,700 carers, the highest number were in the 50-64 age bracket
(38%) followed by carers aged 65+ (24%).

Research! from the Centre for Care, published in partnership with Carers UK,
found that the economic value of contributions made by unpaid carers in the UK
is now £184 billion a year. This is a 29% increase, up by £64.9 billion since
2011. Investing in carers services has long been seen as a preventative
approach with impacts across all health and social care systems.

Background

8.

Under the Care Act 2014, the Council and NHS have a statutory duty to
ensure that needs of unpaid carers are assessed, and sustainable, high-
quality care and support services are available for adults and their unpaid
carers who are in need of and are eligible for meaningful care and support.

The current carer support service is branded as Carers Oxfordshire, and the
contract is with Action for Carers Oxfordshire. This is delivered in partnership
with Rethink Mental llness. The contract expires on 31 March 2026. This
service is funded from the Age Well pooled budget by the Council and the BOB
ICB and totals £937,302pa.

1 Valuing Carers 2021/22: the value of unpaid care in the UK

Page 4


https://www.carersuk.org/media/mfbmjbno/valuing_carers_uk_v3_web.pdf

10. The Council and the BOB ICB also funds carer payments. Following a carer
assessment, carers can be awarded up to £300 in any 12-month period. This
payment is to enable the carer to meet a specific identified need that can't be
met in another way, and to make a difference to a carer's wellbeing, help to
avoid crisis and enable them to continue in their caring role. For example, a
payment of up to £300 could be made for a sports season ticket, an electronic
device such as ‘Alexa’ to play music, audio books and give reminders, an
electronic tablet, a new washing machine, or an overnight hotel break etc. The
budget for carer payments is £525,250 split equally between the Council and
BOB ICB.

11. The carer support service has a big impact on unpaid carers. The service helps
to reduce carer stress and carer breakdown and relieves some of the pressure
on the Council by preventing, reducing or delaying the need for unpaid carers
approaching the Council for support. By the service supporting unpaid carers to
continue in their caring role, supporting people to remain at home, there will be
a delay in people requiring home care or care home placements.

12. The service has seen consistent growth in the number of people being
supported which demonstrates the high and increasing level of demand by the
service. There is further potential demand on the service with people that have
identified themselves as a carer in the Census and those carers who have yet
to be identified.

13. The table below shows how the numbers of people being supported have risen
since the first year of the contract in 2021.

Change
(from
2021 to
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 | 2024-25 | 2024)
Referrals 2212 2636 3310 3548 +60%
Not +68%
Number of self-referrals recorded 1497 2379 2517
Carersline 3739 2981 2955 2837 -24%
Website 6500 18638 22288 19766 +204%
Contacted and engaged by email +594%
(sending surveys, information
etc.) 2200 3070 12260 15270
Care Matters publication (sent out +180%
to all carers on service database 6-
monthly) 8600 18123 19616 24099
Number of carer assessments +49%
completed 1709 2644 2957 2557

The proposed new service

14.  The Council explored national and local models, and looked at the performance
and the impact the current service is having on unpaid carers. With all this

Page 5




15.

16.

information and feedback, the Council and BOB ICB have co-produced a new
model of service.

The overall aim of the new model of carer support service required is to
empower and support unpaid carers. It will be visible and community facing with
a focus on promoting carer identification, providing a proactive, personalised
response, and signposting people to appropriate support within their local
communities. The service will be extended in the new model to include funding
for increased demand. This increases the capacity and capability of the service
and the opportunities to improve the wellbeing of unpaid carers so that they can
continue in their caring role. The service will also provide carer payments
following carer assessments.

The intention isto go out to tender and the new service will start on 1 April 2026.
The contract will be for ten years to allow more sustainability and stability in the
sector. The length of the contract will maximise the opportunity for innovation
and costs savings and partnership working. Included in the contract will be a
break clause giving the Council the right to terminate the contract at any time
by giving not less than 6 months’ notice. The carer support service works
alongside Primary Care Networks, and there is scope to improve pathways and
response to better support our population and deliver efficiencies.

Options analysis

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Option 1: Do nothing and allow the carer support service contract to end on
31 March 2026.

This would leave the Council at risk of challenge in not meeting statutory
obligations under the Care Act 2014.

Option 2: Retender. The Council commissions a co-produced (with BOB ICB)
carer support service through a procurement exercise and transition to a new
ten-year contract with a proposed commencement date from 1 April 2026
(including funding for an increase in demand capacity and continuing carer
short breaks and carer payments).

Option 3: Retender. The Council commissions a co-produced (with BOB ICB)
carer support service through a procurement exercise and transition to a new
ten-year contract from 1 July 2026. This option will require a new 3-month
carer support service contract with the current provider from 1 April to 30 June
2026 to allow sufficient timescales for procurement.

Option 4: Allocate a grant to the current provider and transition to a new ten-
year arrangement from 1 April 2026.

Preferred option

The preferred option is Option 2: Retender. The Council commissions a co-
produced (with BOB ICB) carer support service through a procurement
exercise and transition to a new ten-year contract with a proposed
commencement date from 1 April 2026 (including funding for an increase in
demand capacity and continuing carer short breaks and carer payments).

Page 6



22.

This option would allow the Council to complete a fair exercise to commission a
service which will deliver value for money and meet the specification.

Contract value

23. The current budget for 2025-26 from the Age Well pooled budget is £937,302
for the contract and £525,250 for the carer payments. Consideration has been
given to inflationary pressures experienced by providers and it is proposed to
increase the budget by £34,329 which equates to 4.1%. It is recommended that
the new contract has a price review clause where inflation uplift is considered
on an annual basis. Consideration has also been given to the increased demand
on the service and it is proposed to increase the budget accordingly by
£100,000. Consideration has been given to the impact that short breaks have
on the wellbeing of carers and it is proposed to continue to fund £100,000 for
this annually (included in £937,302). In order to meet the rising demand, it is
further proposed that the carer payments be increased to £625,250 as part of
the new service.

Current service Cost peryear | Activity
Current annual ASC budget £429,050 Referrals over 6,000pa
Carer assessments
2,700pa av., calls to
Current annual ICB budget £408,252 careline 3,000pa av.
Plus Carer short breaks Funding provided for short
£100,000pa breaks for unpaid carers
OCC | £51,000
ICB | £49,000
Total | £937,302
New service Cost peryear | Activity
Increase ASC budget as per 2025- | £17,508 Funding identified in OCC
26 inflation rate at 4.1% Prevention budget.
Increase ICB budget as per 2025- | £16,821 Subject to ICB agreement
26 inflation rate at 4.1% re £34,329 uplift.
Increase in above figures.
Cost uplift applied pro-rata
to the current allocation of
costs within the contract
Total | £971,631 Council increase to be met
from SKE701
PLUS:
Increase in demand payment Proposal to split 51:49 with
£100,000 ICB
Increase in above figures
by 650 referrals to 6,715pa
Increase ASC budget | £51,000 Funding identified in OCC
Prevention budget.

Page 7



Increase ICB budget | £49,000 Proposal to be considered
at ICB Turnaround
Committee
Total | £1,071,631
OCC total | £548,558
ICB total | £523,073
Total | £1,071,631
Current Carer payments budget
ASC Carer payments budget £262,625
ICB Carer payments budget £262,625
Total | £525,250
PLUS:
Increase to Carer payments Proposal to split 50:50
£100,000 between OCC and ICB

Increase ASC budget | £50,000

Increase ICB budget | £50,000 Proposal to be considered
at ICB Turnaround

Committee

Total | £625,250

Grand total | £1,696,881

OCC | £861,183

ICB | £835,698

24.  The total cost for a contract up to ten years with the increase in budget to
meet inflationary pressures, increase in demand, continuing to fund short
breaks for carers and increase in carer payments would be £16,968,810. The
total cost to the council for this would be £8,611,830. This is an increase of
£118,508pa from the council.

25.  The ICB confirmed the commitment of funding to support this procurement at its
Executive Expenditure review group on 8 September 2025.

Impact
26. The Service will work closely with primary care and hospitals, and Adult Social
Care Teams and deliver the following outcomes:

e Provide individuals with local information by maintaining an up-to-date
website and social media platforms for the carer support service and other
forms of communication including attendance at events to enhance
knowledge and help to avoid duplication. The Service both extends and
aligns to the Oxfordshire Way.

e Careridentification — helping the person see themselves as a Carer and
access appropriate support, including accessing a Carer ID/passport card,
and facilitating the Carer to register as a Carer with their GP to allow
appropriate support;

e Operating through a strengths-based approach, encouraging Carers to
recognise their strengths and identifying the support their family, friends
and the local community can give them;

Page 8



27.

Provision of easy to access, clear, up to date guidance on Carers’ rights,
benefits and local services through multiple formats;

Supporting GP practices and Primary Care Networks to promote awareness
and information to provide a coordinated pathway of care;

Resolving Carer’s issues or difficulties and enabling them to get
appropriate support for their health needs and therefore slowing down or
reducing Carer strain, further deterioration or preventing other needs
forming;

Supporting Carers to help reduce crisis demand for the Carer and the
Cared for person;

Seamless, holistic support providing continuity of care by working in a
joined-up way and aligning workplans across social care and health
services;

Reduce the use of statutory services such as primary and secondary
healthcare, hospitals and Adult Social Care;

Increase identification and support of Carers from seldom heard groups
and families in Oxfordshire’s most deprived wards and those experiencing
health inequalities;

Increasing support for Carers to reduce the number of Cared for People
being admitted into hospital and residential or nursing care;

Improving the health and wellbeing of the Carer;

Enabling Carers to enjoy a life of their own alongside their caring role and
reducing social isolation;

Enabling Carers to continue to care for the Cared for Person for as long as
they wish;

Providing peace of mind.

The specification of the contract will include a requirement for the Service
Provider to work with commissioners to design a Customer Relationship
Management system which will evaluate and track actual impact on spend in
other parts of the system e.g. reduction of care home days or length of stay in
hospitals as a result of the specific service interventions. Until this work is
completed, itis not possible to be specific about actual savings over the lifetime
of the contract. Areas in the system where savings would be expected are the
following.

Costs attributable to:

Delayed use of home care or care home and complex nursing beds by
people that are currently being cared for at home by unpaid carers
reduced ambulance call-out and fewer conveyances to the Emergency
Department

when people are admitted to hospital, increased ability to deploy Home
First D2A reducing bed day consumption and higher cost care
packages

Fewer carer breakdowns

community support (including unpaid carers) versus institutional
support

prevention support (delaying carer strain by allocating resources such
as respite accordingly)

Page 9



28. The Key Performance Indicators in the new model will include the following:

KPI

Detail

Impact

Increase in capacity

Increase identification of

Carers and support them
to continue to care for the
Cared for person so they
can remain living in their

own homes

Provides support to
people inthe community
who may not be receiving
any.

Reduction in hospital

Support Carers to

Reduction in hospital

admissions manage effectively at admissions leading to
home, reducing the significant cost savings
frequency of hospital for the healthcare system.
admissions

Reduction in Informing and including Reduction in hospital

readmissions to hospital

carers and ensuring they
are part of the discharge
and reablement plan

admissions leading to
significant cost savings
for the healthcare system.

Shorter hospital stays

Identifies the Carer so
staff should consider them
in their caring role i.e.
being able to stay outside
of visiting hours,
assistance with parking,
included in conversations
around treatment and
discharge

Less distress for Cared
for person. Staff can
concentrate on clinical
focus and Carer can
assist with day-to-day
care. Cost savings for
healthcare system.

Delayed admission to
care home

By supporting unpaid
Carers and providing
expert support advice, the
need for residential care
can be delayed.

Long-term savings for
ASC.

Support for unpaid carers

By reducing Carer stress
and breakdown, the
Service can help maintain
the health and wellbeing
of unpaid Carers and
family members.

Prevention of additional
healthcare costs related
to unpaid Carer health
issues.

Addressing health
inequalities

Targeted interventions
and developing initiatives
with communities that
experience health
inequalities

Promotion of Carer IDs

Page 10




CorporatePolicies and

Priorities

29.

30.

31.

The recommissioning of the carer support service for a further ten years aligns
with the council’'s Strategic Plan 2023-2025:

e Commitment to tackle inequalities in Oxfordshire

e Prioritise the health and wellbeing of residents

e Support carers and the social care system.

The delivery of stronger, more resilient communities will address a portion of
the demand on health and social care services as identified in the Council’s
strategic Plan 2023-2025 priority of supporting carers and the social care
system. The proposed interventions make a significant contribution to
prevention work which seeks to strengthen health outcomes and build on
individuals’ strengths.

The Carer Support Service also aligns with the Oxfordshire All-Age Unpaid
Carers Strategy 2023-2026, through supporting carers to stay well and
independent, enjoying a quality of life which should not be lost because they are
carers.

Financial Implications

32.

The funding required for the ten-year contract from 1 April 2026 has been
identified by Oxfordshire County Council. Funding has been approved by the
BOB Integrated Care Board on 8 September 2025.

Comments checked by:

Stephen Rowles, Finance Business Partner (Adults & Public Health),
Stephen.Rowles@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Legal Implications

33.

34.

35.

The decision to commission carer support services is an executive function.

Under the Care Act 2014, the Council and the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board (“the ICB”) have a statutory duty to
ensure that needs are assessed, and sustainable, high-quality care and
support services are available for adults and their unpaid carers who are in
need of and are eligible for meaningful care and support.

The budget for this procurement is jointly funded by the Council and the ICB

under the S.75 National Health Service Act 2006 Partnership Agreement
between the Council and ICB dated 1/4/2023 (“S.75 Agreement’). Under the

Page 11



36.

S.75 Agreement the Council is the lead commissioner for these types of
services.

The Council has a duty to procure services in accordance with the
Procurement Act 2023 (“PA 2023”). The intended procurement process will be
carried out as a Competitive Flexible Procedure under the Procurement Act
2023 and the resulting service contract will be a light touch contract as defined
in the PA 2023.

Comments checked by:

Jonathan Pool, Solicitor (Contracts), Jonathan.Pool@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Staff Implications

37.

TUPE information has been requested from the existing provider and will be
reviewed for any Council pensions or other financial risks. The information will
be provided to bidders. Bidders will be required to separate out TUPE costs as
part of their bids should these costs not materialise.

Equality & Inclusion Implications

38.

39.

Issues of inequality leading to poor health outcomes and additional financial
pressures are a daily experience of unpaid carers. Caring has been
announced by Public Health England as a social determinant of health?. The
provision of the carer support service allows the Council to better meet its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010 as many unpaid carers support people
with protected characteristics.

With equality and diversity issues at the forefront, the service model has been
designed and co-produced with unpaid carers. Feedback has been sought
about what is working and what isn’t and this has helped shape the design of
the strategy which has informed the new model. The impact of the future service
will be monitored and evaluated to ensure that itis making a positive difference
to unpaid carers and helping them to continue living their lives in the community.

Risk Management

40.

Critical success factors summary table
Critical success criteria Option 1 | Option 2 | Option 3 | Option
[preferred] 4
Savings achieved 3 1 1 1
Least reputational risk 1 3 2 2
Least user risk 1 3 2 3
Strategic aims achieved 1 3 3 3

2 Caring as a social determinant_of health

Page 12


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/60547266d3bf7f2f14694965/Caring_as_a_social_determinant_report.pdf

Feasibility of implementing within 1 3 2 3
acceptable timescales (i.e. no
break in service)
Opportunity to maintain stability 1 3 2 3
and support the existing carer
provision

Total 8 16 12 15

Karen Fuller, Corporate Director of Adult Social Care

Background papers: Nil

Contact Officer:

07795291338

September 2025

Page 13

Lorraine Donnachie, Joint Senior Commissioning Officer
Lorraine.donnachie@oxfordshire.gov.uk



mailto:Lorraine.donnachie@oxfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4/25 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5/25 Carer Support Service

